#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.: SC10-2460 FIFTH DCA CASE NO.: 5D09-4648

PETITIONER'S INITIAL BRIEF On Discretionary Review from the Fifth District Court of Appeal		
Respondent.		
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWA SAFETY & MOTOR VEHICLES,	Y	
VS.		
Petitioner,		
GARY BERNE,		

STUART I. HYMAN, ESQUIRE Stuart I. Hyman, P.A. 1520 East Amelia Street Orlando, Florida 32803 (407) 896-0536 Attorney for Petitioner, Gary Berne Florida Bar No. 319945

# **

#### **INTRODUCTION**

Petitioner, GARY BERNE, seeks review of the Fifth District Court of Appeal decision in Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Berne, 49 So.3d 779 (Fla. 5<sup>th</sup> DCA 2010), review granted Case Number: SC10-2460 (Fla., June 30, 2011). The Fifth District accepted second-tier certiorari review, quashing Court's decision, which quashed the decision of an the Circuit Appellate administrative hearing officer that sustained Petitioner's driver's license suspension. The Fifth District Court of Appeal decision accepting second-tier certiorari review was entered on the erroneous premise that it had certiorari jurisdiction to determine that the Intoxilyzer 8000 breath testing machine upon which Petitioner was tested as a result of an arrest for driving under the influence of alcohol was properly approved pursuant to §316.1932, Fla. Stat. (2006). The erroneously determined Fifth District also that subsequent modifications to its electrical and computer component configuration including its 8100.26 software needed to be only evaluated and not approved under Fla. Admin. Code R. 11D-8.003 and §316.1932, Fla. Stat. (2004).

The Circuit Court's decision was consistent with the essential requirements of the law. The Fifth District's decision to accept second-tier certiorari review expressly conflicted with this Court's decisions on second-tier certiorari jurisdiction in Custer Medical Center a/a/o Maximo Masis v. United Automobile

Insurance Company, \_\_ So.3d \_\_, 2010 WL 4340809 (Fla., Nov. 4, 2010), Haines City Community Development v. Heggs, 658 So.2d 523 (Fla. 1995), Ivey v. Allstate Insurance Company, 774 So.2d 679 (Fla. 2000), Allstate Insurance Company v. Kaklamanos, 843 So.2d 885 (Fla. 2003) and Combs v. State, 436 So.2d 93 (Fla. 1983). The Fifth District's Opinion also expressly conflicted with State v. Polak, 598 So.2d 150 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992) and §316.1932(1)(a)1.a., Fla. Stat. (2005). Polak requires that breath test instruments and their software utilized in the State of Florida be approved including by rule promulgation pursuant to Chapter 120 of the Florida Administrative Procedure Act and not merely evaluated prior to their use. The Fifth District Court of Appeal's interpretation of FDLE Rule 11D-8003 to allow only for evaluations as opposed to the approval of modifications made to the electrical and computer component configurations of the Intoxilyzer 8000 device also rendered it an invalid exercise of delegative legislative authority pursuant to §120.52(8), Fla. Stat. (2004). The Fifth District's interpretation was also in express conflict with Gaudette v. Florida Board of Professional Engineers, 900 So.2d 574, 578, 581 (Fla. 4th DCA 2004) and Smith v. Florida Department of Corrections, 920 So.2d 638 (Fla. 1st DCA 2005) with regard to the validity of rules that are enacted by administrative agencies that exceed proper enabling statutory authority.

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Court having ordered Petitioner's Initial Brief to be filed by July 25, 2011, which is prior to the requirement that the Clerk of the Fifth District Court of Appeal file the original record properly indexed and paginated on or before August 29, 2011, requires Petitioner to provide references to the transcripts and evidence entered at the administrative level which were attached to the Petitioner's Response and Respondent's Petition for Writ of Certiorari filed with the Fifth District Court of Appeal. They will be referred to by the pleading and then the appendix letter or number and the page number of that appendix letter or number, i.e. (Berne's Response App. \_\_\_, pg. \_)

On August 5, 2006 Petitioner, BERNE, was arrested and subsequently submitted to a breath test on an Intoxilyzer 8000 breath testing machine that utilized version 8100.26 software to perform the analysis. After the test results revealed a breath alcohol level in excess of 0.08, Petitioner's driver's license was administratively suspended. Petitioner requested and received a Formal Review Hearing pursuant to §322.2615(6)(a), Fla. Stat. (2005). At the conclusion of that Formal Review Hearing, the hearing officer, who was not an attorney, sustained the suspension of Petitioner's driver's license.

At the hearing which commenced on August 16, 2006, Respondent, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, attempted to show that the

Intoxilyzer 8000 machine used to test Petitioner was in compliance with the FDLE Rules by introducing only a Breath Test Result Affidavit (Department's Petition App. 3), an Agency Inspection (Department's Petition App. 4) and a Department Inspection report (Department's Petition App. 5). No evaluation or document that established or showed compliance with the requirements for the approval of the Intoxilyzer 8000 machine for use as a breath testing machine in the State of Florida was ever introduced by Respondent. (Berne's Response App. A, pgs. 4-5)

Petitioner rebutted the aforesaid evidence. At a continued portion of the hearing held on October 12, 2006, Petitioner called as a witness acting Orange County agency inspector, Kelly Melville, who was a civilian employee of the Orange County Sheriff's Department. (Berne's Response App. C, pg. 14) Ms. Melville testified that she was the agency inspector and custodian of the records for the Intoxilyzer 8000 breath testing machine serial #80-000963 which was the machine upon which Petitioner was tested. (Berne's Response App. C, pg. 14) Ms. Melville testified that the agency inspection form showed that the machine upon which Petitioner was tested contained and used software version 8100.26. (Berne's Response App. C, pg. 14) Ms. Melville further testified that she had no personal knowledge as to whether a machine of the same electrical and computer component configuration as Intoxilyzer 8000 machine serial number 80-000963 had ever been properly approved by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement pursuant to FDLE Rule 11D-8.003. (Berne's Response App. A, pgs. 14-15) Ms. Melville also testified that Intoxilyzer 8000 machines with 8100.26 software in them had, during testing, improperly failed to flag as designed that mouth alcohol levels were present. (Berne's Response App. C, pgs. 22-23)

At another continued hearing on September 22, 2006, Petitioner called as a witness Roger Skipper, a department inspector from the Florida Department of Law Enforcement who was also a civilian employee. (Berne's Response App. B, pg. 5) Mr. Skipper admittedly possessed no degrees in electrical engineering or computer engineering. (Berne's Response App. B, pg. 5) Also submitted by Petitioner into evidence at the hearing was Roger Skipper's testimony at another Formal Review Hearing in Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Hughes which was held on May 18, 2006. (Berne's Response App. C, pg. 9, App. D)

Mr. Skipper, on September 22, 2006, testified that since the initial Intoxilyzer 8000 approval studies on April 30, 2002 and May 29, 2002 had been conducted, there had been no subsequent approval studies conducted on the Intoxilyzer 8000 by FDLE pursuant to FDLE Rule 11D-8.003. (Berne's Response App. B, pg. 6) He noted that version 8100.09 software was in the breath testing machines utilized during the April 30, 2002 study. (Berne's Response App. B, pg. 6) He also testified that 8100.10 software was in the breath testing machines

utilized during the May 29, 2002 approval study. (Berne's Response App. B, pg. 6) He admitted that software version 8100.26 in the machine used on Petitioner's test was not even in existence at the time that the approval studies were conducted on April 30, 2002 and May 29, 2002. (Berne's Response App. B, pg. 20)

Mr. Skipper was not able to advise what types of revisions were made to the sixteen various versions of software that occurred between version 8100.10 utilized on May 29, 2002 and version 8100.26 utilized in Petitioner's case. (Berne's Response App. B, pg. 13) He further admitted that despite FDLE having conducted only an evaluation, no actual approval studies on the Intoxilyzer 8000 with 8100.26 software in it were actually conducted by FDLE. (Berne's Response App. B, pgs. 13-14) Despite the evaluation that was conducted, Mr. Skipper noted the Intoxilyzer 8000 machines were still displaying a systemic problem of computer glitches and malfunctions. (Berne's Response App. B, pgs. 13-14)

The Intoxilyzer 8000 machine was first listed and appeared in FDLE Rule 11D-8.003 that became effective on November 5, 2002. (Berne's Response App. C, pg. 8, App. E) In his testimony, in the <u>Hughes</u> Formal Review Hearing on May 18, 2006, Mr. Skipper advised that dry gas standards were used in the approval process in April and May 2002, even though up until the November 5, 2002 rules, there existed no prior rules allowing the use of dry gas standards in approval

testing or even identifying a source from which dry gas standards could be obtained. (Berne's Response App. D, pgs. 23-25)

Mr. Skipper also admitted that prior to the effective date of FDLE Rule 11D-8.003 on November 5, 2002, the only two approval studies performed by FDLE on the Intoxilyzer 8000 were those conducted on April 30, 2002 and May 29, 2002 respectively. (Berne's Response App. D, pgs. 5, 7, 16, 24, App. G, App. H) Both these approval studies were admittedly conducted pursuant to the July 29, 2001, version of FDLE Rule 11D-8.003 and not the later enacted November 5, 2002 version of FDLE Rule 11D-8.003. (Berne's Response App. C, pg. 8, App. D, pg. 24, App. F) The May 29, 2002 approval study specifically confirmed in writing on the top of page 2, that it was conducted in accordance with Chapter 11D, F.A.C. July 2001 and FDLE/ATP Form 34 Instrument Evaluation Procedures March 2001. (Berne's Response App. H)

Mr. Skipper testified that the two machines involved in the approval study conducted on April 30, 2002, were machine serial numbers: 80-000208 and 80-000209. (Berne's Response App. G, App. D, pg. 5) Mr. Skipper admitted that FDLE Rule 11D-8.003(4)(c) (July 29, 2001) in effect at the time, required the manufacturer to submit to FDLE at least two instruments for the approval evaluation. (Berne's Response App. D, pg. 21, App. F) FDLE Rule 11D-8.003(4) (July 29, 2001), also required the manufacturer to provide at the time of the

approval an operator's/technician's manual, a schematic design of the instrument, and the instrument's maintenance manual if published. (Berne's Response App. F) Mr. Skipper testified that the manufacturer was also required pursuant to FDLE Rule 11D-8.003(4)(j) to provide the "name and description" of the software used. (Berne's Response App. D, pg. 22, App. F)

During the April 30, 2002 approval study, Mr. Skipper testified that the two machines he tested contained only described software version 8100.09 which was a completely different version of software than software version 8100.26 which was contained in the Intoxilyzer 8000 machine upon which Petitioner was tested. (Berne's Response App. B, pg. 6, App. D, pgs. 13-14) The alcohol reference solutions used to test both of the machines in the approval study were limited to various alcohol concentrations of: **0.02** grams per 210 liters, **0.05** grams per 210 liters and **0.08** grams per 210 liters. (Berne's Response App. G) Despite FDLE Rule 11D-8.003 and FDLE/ATP Form 34-rev. March 2001 incorporated therein requiring the machines to be tested at additional alcohol concentrations of 0.15 grams per 210 liters, **0.20** grams per 210 liters, **0.30** grams per 210 liters or **0.40** grams per 210 liters, FDLE did not fully conduct testing at these levels. (Berne's Response App. D, pgs. 12-13)

Mr. Skipper also testified that during the April 30, 2002 approval study he used non approved dry gas standard simulator controls manufactured by some

unapproved entity known only as "Scotty". (Berne's Response App. D, pgs. 9-11, App. F, App. G) No provision existed in the July 29, 2001, FDLE rules to test an Intoxilyzer 8000 machine using dry gas standards instead of required simulator solutions. (Berne's Response App. F)

During the course of his April 30, 2002 testing, Mr. Skipper also determined with regard to machine 80-000208 that there were numerous problems with the software which caused sporadic problems including the breath test affidavit being produced by the machine to be printed incorrectly. (Berne's Response App. B, pgs. 14-15, App. D, pg. 15) The machine also displayed malfunctions on sample numbers 5, 12 and 35 involving the mouth alcohol test that was conducted. (Berne's Response App. G, Exceptions page) The machine also showed malfunctions on the 0.20 simulator test when after only the twelfth sample the machine displayed results that were both "low and erratic". (Berne's Response App. D, pg. 14, App. G, Exceptions page) FDLE was forced to prematurely terminate the testing during the April 30, 2002, approval study because it was determined that air was improperly being drawn through the breath hose at the same time that a sample was being drawn from the simulator which Mr. Skipper identified as being symptomatic of a failed one way valve in the machine. (Berne's Response App. D, pg. 13, App. G)

As to the other machine, serial number 80-000209 involved in the April 30, 2002 study, he found that during the 0.02 simulator test the instrument malfunctioned and improperly reported interferent when none was present in simulator sample number 42. (Berne's Response App. G, Exceptions page) During simulator sample number 44 the instrument also improperly reported interferent and alcohol being present during a subsequent "air blank". (Berne's Response App. G, Exceptions page) Mr. Skipper found the instrument also reported interferent when none was known to be present for two more 0.02 samples and for three 0.05 samples. (Berne's Response App. G, Exceptions page) Mr. Skipper then stopped the April 30, 2002 testing even though the machines had purportedly been previously calibrated by CMI. (Berne's Response App. G, Exceptions page)

Another subsequent attempted approval study was conducted by FDLE one month later on May 29, 2002. (Berne's Response App. H, App. D, pgs. 16-17) According to FDLE, this particular approval study was also conducted in accordance with FDLE Rule 11D-8.003 effective July 29, 2001 and FDLE/ATP Form 34 Instrument Evaluation Procedures dated March 2001 made reference to in that rule. (Berne's Response App. D, pg. 17, App. F) Mr. Skipper testified that the May 29, 2002 approval study ended up utilizing only one Intoxilzyer 8000 machine serial number: 80-000208 because the required second machine, Intoxilyzer 8000 serial number: 80-000209 stopped working due to an electrical

short that occurred in the machine during the course of testing. (Berne's Response App. H, App. D, pgs. 17-18)

FDLE Rule 11D-8.003 (July 2001) under which the approval was being conducted required that the manufacturer produce for the approval study at least two intoxilyzer 8000 machines. (Berne's Response App. D, pg. 21, App. F) Mr. Skipper admitted that with regard to the May 29, 2002 testing, the software had been changed in the Intoxilyzer 8000 machine from software version 8100.09 to new software version 8100.10. (Berne's Response App. B, pgs. 6, 14-15, App. H)

During the course of the May 29, 2002 approval study conducted by FDLE on machine number 80-000208, the breath test affidavit as it did on April 30, 2002, once again failed to print correctly. (Berne's Response App. H, Exceptions page) In addition, two exceptions, i.e. malfunctions of the machine were noted during the mouth alcohol test and were found to not be in compliance with FDLE Rule 11D-8-003. (Berne's Response App. H, Exceptions page)

With regard to the other machine, 80-000209, during the second subject test attempt, an interferent was improperly detected during the air blank and the test was improperly aborted by the instrument. (Berne's Response App. H, Exceptions page, App. D, pg. 20) During the third subject test an interferent was again improperly detected and the test was again aborted by the instrument. (Berne's Response App. H, Exceptions page, App. D, pgs. 20-21) FDLE determined there

were no interferents in the room to cause the malfunctions and the machine inexplicably powered itself down. (Berne's Response App. H, Exceptions page) Since the machine was again operating improperly, Mr. Skipper decided that no further testing would be conducted with the instrument. (Berne's Response App. H, App. D, pg. 17)

The approval studies conducted on April 30, 2002 and May 29, 2002 that were introduced into evidence, showed that Intoxilyzer 8000 machines with only software versions 8100.09 and 8100.10 were ever tested by FDLE. (Berne's Response App. B, pgs. 6, 14-15, App. D. pg. 26) The documents and evidence also established that the aforesaid software and Intoxilyzer 8000 machines did not operate properly and did not comply with the FDLE rules and forms that were in effect. (Berne's Response App. G, App. H, App. D. pg. 26) The Intoxilyzer 8000 machine upon which Petitioner was tested in this case contained 8100.26 software which was at least sixteen versions removed from the 8100.09 or 8100.10 that was utilized in the approval studies. (Berne's Response App. B, pg. 7) The Intoxilyzer 8000 machine with 8100.26 software has **never** been subjected to an approval study required under FDLE Rule 11D-8.003. (Berne's Response App. B, pg. 6)

At the hearing, Mr. Skipper was also shown records from the Florida Department of Law Enforcement pertaining to human breath tests on various Intoxilyzer 8000 machines located throughout the State of Florida using 8100.26

software. (Berne's Response App. B, pgs. 9, 11, App. C, pgs. 7-8, App. I) Mr. Skipper admitted that in order to have a scientifically valid breath sample and test on an Intoxilyzer 8000 machine, the breath sample volume from an individual taking the test must register at a minimum of 1.1 liters. (Berne's Response App. B, pg. 21) Mr. Skipper noted that if the breath volume for the sample was less than 1.1 liters, the result was considered scientifically unreliable and the software in the Intoxilyzer 8000 was supposed to print a message that stated "Volume Not Met". (Berne's Response App. B, pgs. 9-12, 21)

The records from the Florida Department of Law Enforcement showed on each page of the records that there were human breath test results that were misrepresented by the Intoxilyzer 8000 to be scientifically valid when in fact Mr. Skipper knew and admitted that they were not actually scientifically valid because they were based on breath volumes that were actually less than the required 1.1 liters. (Berne's Response App. B, pgs. 12, 21, App. I, pg. 3) In each of these instances, the Intoxilyzer 8000 improperly failed to print the required and designed "Volume Not Met" message despite the low volume. (Berne's Response App. B, pgs. 12, 21) Mr. Skipper noted that by failing to produce the required message, "Volume Not Met", the Intoxilyzer 8000 machine was essentially improperly misrepresenting that the breath test results obtained were scientifically valid even

though he knew they were scientifically invalid. (Berne's Response App. B, pgs. 12, 21)

Despite FDLE's purported previous evaluation of the 8100.26 software without having conducted a full approval study, Mr. Skipper could not provide any explanation for these scientifically unreliable results that were improperly being represented by the Intoxilyzer 8000 to be scientifically reliable. (Berne's Response App. B, pgs. 12-13) He admitted the Intoxilyzer 8000 machine was not working as it was designed to work. (Berne's Response App. B, pgs. 12-14) Mr. Skipper's lone justification for its failings was that Petitioner's expectation of perfection in the breath test results was an unreasonable expectation with respect to the Intoxilyzer 8000. (Berne's Response App. B, pgs. 13-14)

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