IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.: SC10-2460

GARY BERNE,

Petitioner,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES.

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF ON THE MERITS

On Discretionary Review from the Fifth District Court of Appeal

STEPHEN D. HURM GENERAL COUNSEL

Jason Helfant
Fla. Bar No. 502898
Assistant General Counsel
Department of Highway Safety
and Motor Vehicles
DHSMV-Legal Office
P.O. Box 540609
Lake Worth, FL 33454-0609
Telephone: (561) 357-4165

jasonhelfant@flhsmv.gov

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Fifth District Court of Appeal appropriately exercised its discretion and granted certiorari relief where the circuit court violated a clearly established principle of law resulting in a miscarriage of justice when it concluded that without independent scientific evidence demonstrating the reliability of the Intoxilyzer 8000 with software version 8100.26, the hearing officer below should have excluded the Petitioner's breath test results from his DUI arrest. In doing so, the circuit court ignored the record evidence establishing that the Intoxilyzer was operated and maintained in accordance with FDLE rules, and instead concluded,

without any evidence to support such conclusion, that "the hearing officer failed to consider the discrepancies and problems presented" although no discrepancies or problems were presented to the hearing officer and there was no evidence whatsoever that the hearing officer failed to consider what was presented by Petitioner. See Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Falcone, 983 So. 2d 755, 759 (Fla. 2d DCA 2008) ("As in Alliston, 813 So. 2d at 145, we conclude that the circuit court's error resulted in a miscarriage of justice requiring certiorari relief because it has precedential value and the circuit court is applying the same error to numerous other administrative proceedings involving the suspension of driver's licenses.")

The Fifth District Court of Appeal correctly concluded that Petitioner's attempt to overcome the presumption of impairment by presenting evidence that the Intoxilyzer 8000 with software version 8100.26 was not approved was insufficient because that software was properly evaluated in accordance with FDLE rules and did not require a separate approval. As the District Court recognized, Rule 11D-8.003, titled "Approval of Breath Test Methods and Instruments" specifically provides:

(6) the availability of new instruments, **software**, options or modifications does not negate the approval status of previously approved instruments, software, options or modifications. (emphasis added).

Based on the foregoing, the Fifth District properly granted certiorari in the instant case where the circuit court's application of wrong law amounted to a miscarriage of justice and would result in the continual application of the wrong law absent a District Court ruling. Combs, 436 So. 2d at 96 (Fla. 1983); Haines, 658 So. 2d at 530 (Fla. 1995); Allstate Ins. Co., 843 So. 2d at 890 (Fla. 2003).

ARGUMENT

A. THE DISTRICT COURT'S RULING IS NOT IN CONFLICT WITH ANY DECISION OF THE SUPREME COURT OR OTHER DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL.

Despite the Petitioner's contention that the Fifth District Court of Appeal "merely disagreed with the holding of the Circuit Court without supplying a proper sufficient legal basis for [reversal]," the Petitioner has failed to show any conflict between the Fifth District Court of Appeal's holding in Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Berne, 49 So. 3d 779 (Fla. 5th DCA 2010) and any decision of this Court or any other District Court of Appeal on the same question of law. Contrary to Petitioner's contention the district court did not merely disagree with the circuit court's ruling. The district court reversed the circuit court because the circuit court applied "the wrong law" and will continue to do so without clear direction from the higher court. The district court

appropriately exercised its discretion and granted certiorari relief because the circuit court's departure from a clearly established principle of law in the instant case resulted in a miscarriage of justice. See Ivey v. Allstate Insurance Company, 774 So.2d 679, 682 (Fla. 2000). Combs v. State, 436 So. 2d 93, 96 (Fla. 1983); Haines City Community Development v. Heggs, 658 So.2d 523 (Fla. 1995); Allstate Ins. Co. v. Kaklamanos, 843 So. 2d 885, 890 (Fla. 2003).

In <u>Berne</u>, the Fifth District specifically held that:

the circuit court clearly indicates that absent an opinion from this court, the circuit court will continue to apply the **wrong law** in future cases of administrative license suspensions involving breath tests administered on the Intoxilyzer 8000. Accordingly, we grant the petition and quash the order under review. (emphasis added).

Berne, 49 So. 3d 779. In fact, in footnote 1 of its opinion, the district court cites to no less than nine different district court cases where circuit courts applied the incorrect law. See Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Falcone, 983 So. 2d 755, 756 (Fla. 2d DCA 2008); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Patrick, 895 So.2d 1131, 1133 (Fla. 5th DCA 2005); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Alliston, 813 So. 2d 141, 143-144 (Fla. 2d DCA), review denied, 835 So. 2d 269 (Fla. 2002); at 143-44; Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Lazzopina, 807 So. 2d 77, 77 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Neff, 804 So. 2d 519, 520 (Fla. 5th

DCA 2001); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Dehart, 799 So. 2d 1079, 1081 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Cochran, 798 So. 2d 761, 762 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Mowry, 794 So. 2d 657, 658 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001); Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles v. Russell, 793 So.2d 1073, 1076 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001); see also State Farm Florida Ins. Co. v. Lorenzo, 969 So. 2d 393, 398-99 (Fla. 5th DCA 2007) ("Moreover, we note the error could have a pervasive, widespread effect in other proceedings.").

The Fifth District Court of Appeal makes it clear that the circuit court violated a clearly established principle of law resulting in a miscarriage of justice and noted that absent action from the district court, the circuit court would continue to apply the wrong law. This assertion is not based merely on the Fifth District's opinion or speculation, it was made upon invitation by the circuit court in their own Berne decision where the lower court held that "[a]bsent any controlling authority on point from the Fifth District Court of Appeal, we find the en banc panel's decision in the Atkins case to be well reasoned and highly persuasive." Thus, the Ninth Circuit admitted that there is no controlling case on point that addresses whether or not independent scientific evidence demonstrating the reliability of the Intoxilyzer 8000 with software 8100.26 is necessary in order

for a hearing officer to conclude that a driver's breath test results are accurate and essentially requested the District Court to provide such authority.

Furthermore, the reality of the Ninth Circuit repeatedly failing to follow clearly established law concerning the approval of an Intoxilyzer instrument is a reoccurring problem in that circuit. There is no better example of this than the *en banc* ruling in Brady v. State, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, 15 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 1145a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct., September 11, 2008), which disapproved more than twenty-eight (28) circuit court cases in which the Ninth Circuit had previously ruled that the Intoxilyzer instrument was not approved and reversed an administrative driver's license suspension like the Petitioner's. ² In

Alejandro v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 14 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 738b (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. May 8, 2007); Boswell v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 14 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 717b (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 26, 2007); Vadher v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 14 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 719a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 26, 2007); Flynn v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 14 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 723a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 24, 2007); Rozen v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 14 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 729a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 23, 2007); Rainwater v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 14 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 734a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 17, 2007); Myers v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 14 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 625a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 11, 2007); Cruz v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 14 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 603a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 10, 2007); Della Barba v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 14 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 629a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 5, 2007); Boesel v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 14 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 617a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 4, 2007); Nickol v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 14 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 597a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 4, 2007); Ameritskiy v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 14 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 619a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 2, 2007); Filipe v. Dep't of Highway Safety &

<u>Brady</u>, the Ninth Circuit took issue with the driver's attempt to shift the burden of proof to the Department to establish that the Intoxilyzer instrument used in that case was an approved breath testing instrument. <u>Id</u>. The circuit court clearly held in <u>Brady</u> that the burden is on the driver to come forward with evidence that the Department failed to substantially comply with the administrative rules concerning the approval of the breath testing machine. <u>Id</u>. The circuit court concluded in <u>Brady</u> that the burden is on the petitioner to come forward with evidence that the

Motor Vehicles, 14 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 627a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Mar. 28, 2007); Shamey v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 12 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 408a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Jan. 24, 2007); Zicchino v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 13 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 947a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 6, 2006); Garcia v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 13 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 28a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Aug. 16, 2005); Lessard v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 13 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 19a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Aug. 2, 2005); Kimmins v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 12 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 1013a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. July 6, 2005); Clark v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 12 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 1017a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. July 1, 2005); Talbott v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 13 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 539a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. June 30, 2005); Kuneman v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 12 Fla, L. Weekly Supp. 1017a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. June 29, 2005); Spano v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 12 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 830a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 29, 2005); Jones v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 12 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 698b (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 12, 2005); MaGee v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 12 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 699a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Apr. 7, 2005); Bennett v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 12 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 707a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Mar. 30, 2005); McEver v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 12 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 703a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Mar. 30, 2005); Mejia v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 12 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 701a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Mar. 30, 2005); and Guerrero v. Dep't of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles, 12 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 695a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Jan. 21, 2005).

Department failed to substantially comply with the administrative rules concerning the approval of the breath testing machine. See Mowry, 794 So. 2d at 659; see also Dep't of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Fiorenzo, 795 So. 2d 1128 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001)(where petitioner failed to rebut the presumption created by the documentary evidence that the Department substantially complied with the administrative rules, the circuit court erred in granting certiorari). Id. at 4.

In the instant case, the Fifth District properly granted the Department's Petition for Writ of Certiorari because the Ninth Circuit again committed the same mistake that it had committed at least twenty-eight times prior to Brady by applying incorrect law in holding that Intoxilyzer instruments are not approved devices without any proof of non-compliance by the driver. In doing so, the circuit court ignored the record evidence establishing that the Intoxilyzer was operated and maintained in accordance with FDLE rules, and instead concluded, without any evidence to support such conclusion, that "the hearing officer failed to consider the discrepancies and problems presented" although no discrepancies or problems were presented to the hearing officer and there was no evidence whatsoever that the hearing officer failed to consider what was presented by Petitioner. Berne v. Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicle, 17 Fla. L. Weekly Supp. 75a (Fla. 9th Cir. Ct. Oct 23, 2009). See Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Falcone, 983 So. 2d 755, 759 (Fla. 2d DCA 2008)

("As this court did in <u>Alliston</u>, 813 So. 2d at 145, we conclude that the circuit court's error resulted in a miscarriage of justice requiring certiorari relief because it has precedential value and the circuit court is applying the same error to numerous other administrative proceedings involving the suspension of driver's licenses.")

In fact, in <u>Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Wejebe</u>, 954 So. 2d 1245, 1249 (Fla. 3d DCA 2007), a case heavily relied upon by the Petitioner, the Third District Court of Appeal held, as follows:

We find that the circuit court applied the correct law. In the initial instance, DHSMV is not required to prove that the intoxilyzer machine was in compliance. Dep't of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Mowry, 794 So. 2d 657, 659 (Fla. 5th DCA 2001). Instead, the driver has the burden of establishing that the intoxilyzer machine was not in compliance. Id. However, once a driver submits proof that an intoxilyzer machine was not in substantial compliance with the appropriate regulations, DHSMV must prove that there was substantial compliance. See Dep't of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles v. Farley, 633 So. 2d 69, 71 (Fla. 5th DCA 1994). Because this is the law that the circuit court applied, there is no error.

In <u>Wejebe</u>, the driver presented evidence which included both court orders and live testimony that showed that the specific Intoxilyzer instrument that Wejebe used was out of compliance. There is no such evidence in this case. Here, the Petitioner presented absolutely no evidence that showed that the Intoxilyzer 8000

instrument he used was either unapproved, unevaluated, inaccurate or not properly maintained by law enforcement. In fact, none of the Petitioner's witnesses were able to testify that the Intoxilyzer instrument used by the Petitioner was either not approved, did not pass any evaluations or was out of compliance with any rule or regulation. Thus, he failed to meet his burden of establishing that the instrument was not in compliance.

Furthermore, unlike the circuit court, the Fifth District Court of Appeal did not reweigh the evidence in holding that the Department met its burden of establishing the admissibility of Petitioner's breath test results through the documentary evidence which established that Petitioner's breath test was performed on an Intoxilyzer that was operated and maintained substantially according to methods approved by FDLE. State v. Donaldson, 579 So. 2d 728, 729 (Fla. 1991). Section 316.1932(1)(b)(2), Florida Statutes. The district court did not reweigh the evidence in concluding that Petitioner's attempt to overcome the presumption of impairment by presenting evidence that the Intoxilyzer 8000 with software version 8100.26 was not approved was insufficient because the software was properly evaluated in accordance with FDLE rules and did not require a separate approval. As the district court recognized, Rule 11D-8.003, titled "Approval of Breath Test Methods and Instruments" specifically provides:

(6) the availability of new instruments, **software**, options or modifications does not negate the approval status of previously approved instruments, software, options or modifications. (emphasis added).

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